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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of VLCC Health Care Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of VLCC Health Care Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its loss including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the 'Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 2.1 in the financial statements, which describes the possible effect of uncertainties
relating to COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s financial performance as assessed by the management. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Companies Director’s report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irreqularities: selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaterments can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 1" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As reqguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equitydealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account and with the returns received from the branches not visited by
us;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(@) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 27(i) to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company,

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
\ICAI F.ircg‘\R?i;tration Number: 101049W/E300004
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per ths{.der Seth

Partner
Membership Number: 094524
UDIN: 20094524AAAAFD8198
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: December 29, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of the section on “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: VLCC Health Care Limited (“the Company™)

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the vear and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable
properties included in property, plant and equipment/ fixed assets are held in the name of the company.

ii. The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iiXa),
(b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to directors including entities in which they are
interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and, guarantees, and securities
given have been complied with by the company.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

Vi, We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, related to the education service and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts
and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the
same.

vil, (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-  tax, sales-
tax, service tax, duty of custom, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues
have been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been slight delay in a few
cases. The provisions relating to duty of excise are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, income tax, service tax, sales tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom,
duty of excise, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

The space has been intentionally left blank
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Amount under

Period for which the

]

Forum, where the

Name of the Statue Nature of dues dispute (Rs. P dispute is pending
Lakhs)
famasEIent years Commissioner of Income
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 53 50 2011-12, 2014-15, S CABBEAIE] il
B ; 201516 PP
Assessment years Income Tax Appellate
i i Tew 11.39 2012-13t02013-14 | Tribunal
Assessment years
2005-06, 2006-07, Hi il Tax
Kerala value Added tax Sales tax _— 2009- 10,2010- o ﬂcmresrCEr b
; 11,2011-12,2012-13 Bhs Hina
B and 2014-15
Assessment years e
UP Value added tax Sales tax - 2009- 10,2010-11 E’:'“tecfr;rg;f;";’ggg ”
8 2013-14 PREEIIL,
Assessment year Deputy Commissioner
Maharashtra value added tax | Sales tax 10.05 2013-14 (Anpeal), Mumbai
April 01, 2011 to Appellate Tribunal of
LeRdif kAL ASED LUy te 14.03 November 17,2011 | Commercial Tax, Bhopal
T —— Commissioner Customs
Finance Act,1994 Service tax & Central Excise ( Appeal
1.36 2004-05 ;
-1), Delhi
Assessment Year Commissioner Customs
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 1.38 2012-2013 to 2015- & Central Excise ( Appeal
’ 2016 -1), Noida
Assessment Year Commissioner Customs
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 2012-2013 to 2015- & Central Excise ( Appeal
8.33
2016 -1), Lucknow
N Custom excise and
; . Assessment Year :
Finance Act,1994 Service tax 6.96 2008-09 to 2015-16 Se_rwce Tax Appe_]late
’ ) Tribunal, Chennai
Assessment Years Commissioner Customs
Finance Act,1994 Service tax 87.16 2012-13, 2013-14, & Central Excise ( Appeal
) 2014-15, 2015-16 -1), Delhi
Assessment year Commissioner of custom
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax 0.84 2011-12 to 2013-14 & Central Excnsg
(Appeals), Cochin
Assessient year Commissioner of custom
Finance Act,1994 Service tax 113 2008-09 to 2011-12 & Central Excise
(Appeals), Kolkata
. : Assessment year Deputy commissioner,
Fingnce At 1954 SeR¥iee AR 0.29 2014-15t02016-17 | CGST, Amritsar
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viii.

Xi.

Xii.

xlii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
government or dues to debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has utilized the monies raised by way term loans for the purposes for which they were raised,
Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration
has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under
clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persens connected with him as referred to in Section
192 of the Companies Act, 2013,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
CAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E3000O4

\\\,\/

per Yo
Partner

Membership'Number: 094524
UDIN: 20094524AAAAFD8198

nder Seth

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: December 29, 2020
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ANNEXURE Il TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE IND AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VLCC HEALTH CARE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VLCC Heath Care Limited (“the
Company") as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinian

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 10109W,’E300004

»
NN

per Yogender Seth

Partner \

Membership Number: 094524
UDIN: 20094524AAAAFDE198
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: December 29, 2020




VLCC Health Care Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

CIN No.-UT4899D L1996 PLCO525842

(AN amorits b INR Lakhs windess otherwise staied)

Chartered Aceountants
 1CAl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Nisted As at Asal
March 31, 2020 March 31, 20019
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Property, plantand equipment 4 6,236 A7
Capital work in progress 4 27 -
Right-of-lse Assets 23 16,257 -
Intangible assets 5 273 347
Investment 1n subsidiaries 6 11.183 10,343
Financial assels
- Investments * Tia) 0 0
- Secunty Deposits i) 661 hEE
- Other bank balances e 106 91
- Others 6 I 1
Other non- current assels 9 9l 260
Deferred tax assets (net) 15 2719 2719
37,554 21,729
Current assets
livventories 8 2420 2018
Financial assets:
- Security Deposits Tib) 534 409
- Trade receivables ey 218 273
- Cash and cash equivalents Tdy 369 2454
- Other bank balances e) 46 54
- Others KL 08 51
Current tax assets (net) 15 391 3
Other current asscis 9 291 320
4,368 5,908
Total Assets 41,922 27.636
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share eapital 10 3,707 3,767
Other equity:
Share Premium 6,430 6430
General Reserve 116 ilh
Retained carnings (5,574) {,325)
Total Equity 4,739 5,938
LIABILITIES
Nuon- current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 11{a) 2,236 2,791
= Oher financial labilities 1H{d) 100 -
Provisions 12 436 526
Contract Liabilities 13 1.036 252
Lease Liabilities 28 12,592 -
Other non current labilities 14 18 158
Total non- current liabilitics 16,638 4,326
Curvent lighilities
Finaneial liabilities:
- Borrowinus Ti{a) 1,746 808
- Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and Small enterprises 26 164 146
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises and Small .
cnterprises 11(b) 7.688 7,660
- Onther financial liabilities I1{e) 1,066 1850
Provisions 12 147 291
Contract Liabilitics 13 4,110 3,369
Lease Lialilities 28 4,858 -
Cther Current Liabilities 14 766 1,197
20,545 17321
Total Liabilities 37,183 21,648
Total Equity and Liabilitics 41,922 27,636
*0 represents amount is below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company,
Summary of Sigmificant Accounting policies 2.1 .
The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements,
As per our report of even dute
ff

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of VLCC Health Care Limited

"".\_P_%!.‘;“Cwl\“--}

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLIP

Place: Gurgaon
Date; December 29, 2020

Jayant Khosla

Managing Director

DIN No. 08321843

=

Marinder Kamar

Group Chief Financial Ofticer and Company Secrutary

Membership No. : FCS 3594

tukesh Luthra
Chairman

DIN Ne.00296830 =
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VLCC Health Care Limited
Statement of Profit and loss for year ended March 31, 2020

CIN No.-U74899DL1996PLC082842
(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended  For the year ended

Notes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Income
Revenue from contracts with customers 16 34,443 37,977
Other income 17 52 99
Total income (A) 34,495 38,076
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 19 4,522 4,469
Purchase of stock-in-trade 882 1272
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories of stock-in-trade 20 (154) (257)
Employee benefits expense 21 10,993 13,254
Other expenses 24 10,135 16,346
Total expenses Before Interest, Depreciation, Amortisation (B) 26,378 35,584
and Tax (B)
Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and (C)=(A-B) 8,117 2,492
Amortisation (EBITDA)
Finance income (D) 18 104 152
Finance costs (E) 22 3,671 1,564
Depreciation and amortization expense (F) 23 5.801 1,944
Profit /(Loss) before tax G=(C+D-E-F) (1251) {864)
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) - il
Taotal tax expense (H) - -
Profit/(loss) for the year 1=(G-I1) (1257 (854)
Other Comprehensive Income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

- Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (Refer Note 31) i (70)

- Income tax credit/(charge) of above item - -
Other Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year i (70)
Total Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (1250) (934)
Earnings/(loss) per share: 25
Basic and Diluted in INR (3.32) (2.29)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1 '
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of VLCC Health Care Limited /

ICAIl Firm Registration Number:101049W/E300004

(< /i '4::"/’ )

-

Jayant Khosla * Mukesh Luthra

Managing Director Chairman
DIN Ne. 08321843 DIN No.00296830
e
Place: Gurgaon Narinder Kumar
Date: December 29, 2020 Group Chief Financial Officer and Conipany Secretary

Membership No. : FCS 3594




VLCC Health Care Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
CIN No.-UT4899DL1996PLC082842

(Al amownts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise staved)

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Cash flow from operating activitics
Profit/ (luss) before tax (1,251) (804
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows;
Depreciation Property, plant and equipment and amortisation of 3,801 1,944
mtangible assets and right-of-use assets
Provision for doubtiul trade receivables 35 (i
Provision for decoimmissioning liabilities - 4
Provision for Lease Equalisation - 2
(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 19 3
Finance Costs including Interest on lease liabilities 3,671 1,564
Finance Income (104) (152)
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss 29 17
Operating profit before working capital changes §,220 2,507
Movements in working capital:
({Decrease)/increase in trade payables and other liabilities (1.414) 1,841
{Deerease)/increase in provisions (34) 88
Decrease/{increase) in trade receivable 5 84
Decreasef(increase) in inveniories (402) (103)
Decreasef{increase) in other assets (118) 114
{1,963) 2,024
Cash generated from uperations 6,257 4,531
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (67) (2)
Net eash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A) 6,190 4,529
Cash flow from investing activitics:
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 85 123
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including Capital advance (729) (1,106)
Purchase of Non-Current Investments (838) (796)
Interest Received 12 23
(Investment)/Proceeds from Bank Deposits (7) 26
Net cash generated/(used) in investing activities (B) (1,477) (1,730}

VLCC Health Care Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2020 (Cont'd)

(Al conowus in INR Laklis unless otherwise stated)
(Cout'd)

Particulars

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2019

Net cash flow from financing activities:

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 700 700
Repayments of long-term borrowings {1,186) (1,434)
Movement in Cash Credits (Net) 239 {5%)
Payment of lease liabilities including interest thereon 14.977) .
Interest paid (1,574) (1,564
Net cash generated/(used) from financing activities (C) (6,793) (2,357)
Net inerease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C) (2,085) 441
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,454 2,012
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 369 2,454

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2.1)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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VLCC Health Care Limited

Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

CIN No.-U74899DL1996PL.C082842
(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity Share Capital [refer note 10]

Particulars Number of Amount
shares (in
Lakhs)
Asat April 1, 2018 377 3,767
Add : Issue of equity share capital 3 =
As at March 31, 2019 377 3,767
As at April 1, 2019 377 3,767
Add : Issue of equity share capital = -
As at March 31, 2020 377 3,767
b. Other Equity
Particulars Reserves and surplus Total
Securities General Retained
Premium Reserve earnings

As at April 1,2018 6,430 116 (3,392) 3,154
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - (864) (864)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - (70) (70)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) - - (934) (934)
As at March 31, 2019 6,430 116 (4,325) 2,221
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - (1,251) (1.251)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - I |
Total comprehensive income/(loss) - - (1,250) (1,230)
As at March 31, 2020 6,430 116 (5,574) 971 |

Securities premium: Represents the premium received in earlier years upon issue of shares and can be utilized as per the

provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

General reserye: The amount in general reserve has been recorded as per Companies (Transfer of Profits to Reserves) Rules,
1975 in earlier years and can be utilized as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2.1)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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VLCC Health Care Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(41l amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1. Corporate information

VLCC Health Care Limited (‘the Company”) is an unlisted public limited company domiciled in India and
was incorporated in India on October 23, 1996 under the provisions of the Companies Act, applicable in
India. The registered office of the company is located at M-14 Greater Kailash-IT, Commercial Complex
New Delhi.

The Company is principally engaged in the business of maintaining and running beauty, slimming, fitness
and health centres at various locations, sale of beauty products and also provide vocational training in
beauty and nutrition across India.

These separate financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by
Board of Directors on December 29, 2020.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The Company had voluntarily adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133
of Companies Act, 2013 read together with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 during
the year ended March 31, 2017 with transition date being April 1, 2015.

The financial statements comply with all material aspects with Ind AS notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
the relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis, and the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as specifically required
by Ind AS. (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

COVID-19 Assessment

The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID 19) pandemic globally is causing a slowdown of economic activity.
In many countries including India, businesses are being forced to cease or limit their operations for long or
indefinite period of time. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans,
quarantines, social distancing, and closures of non-essential services have also had impact on the operations
and financial position of the Company. The Company has taken various measures to reduce it’s costs
including fixed overheads, salaries across levels as well as reduction or waiver of rent. The Company has
also assessed the possible effects that may result from COVID 19 on its operations and on the carrying
value of current and non-current assets. Basis_s_uch_assgssment,_zhe_(:ompany_has_recorded-appropriate—
provisions wherever needed and expects' the carrying amount of these assets to be recoverable. In
developing the assumption relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global conditions because of
the pandemic, the Company, as on date of approval of these financial statements has used various
information, as available. The impact of COVID 19 may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval
of these financial statements.

Rounding of amounts
The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when
otherwise indicated as per the requirement of Schedule II1. e
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2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

° Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

L]

® @ o

b) Foreign currencies ) :

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional
currency. The functional currency and items included in the financial statements are measured using that
functional currency.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Measurement of foreign currency monetary items at the Balance Sheet date
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Treatment of exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement of foreign currency non-monetary items at the Balance Sheet date

® Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

¢ Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
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respectively).

¢} Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

® In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 —Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest Iével input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial
assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration, wherever applicable. At each reporting
date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to
be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management
or its expert verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

d) Revenue recognition

Revenue from services . -
The Company recognizes revenue primarily from beauty and slimming packages.
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Ind AS 115 was issued on March 28,2018 and superseded Ind AS 18 Revenue and it applied, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers effective April 1, 2018. The Company
had adopted Ind AS 115 using the full retrospective method of adoption last year.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or
services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for
discounts, credits, price concessions and other incentives and discounts. Revenue also excludes taxes
collected from the customers.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

* The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple products and
services to a customer oyer a period of time. The Company assesses the products/services promised in
a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct
performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer
to benefit independently from such deliverables.

¢ Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could
be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements such as
discounts, price concessions, etc. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the
transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The estimated
amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and
is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The Company allocates the elements of variable
considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable evidence that
they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations.

* The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance
obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of
the relative standalone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract.

* The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a
point in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how customer
consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence
of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service,
transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

Revenue from regular beauty sales are recognised as services are provided to the customers.

Revenue in respect of tuition fees received from students for courses run by the Company and also those
launched under various schemes by the Government of India is recognised over the period of the course as
the Company believes that the obligation is towards the full course rather than a particular session. Fees are
recorded net of discounts, rebate, incentives if any.

Revenue in respect of non-refundable lump sum fees received from the franchisee’s or infrastructure
provider is recognised over the period of the contract.

Revenue in respect of royalty received from the franchisees is recognised on accrual basis at the end of each
month in terms of the agreement.
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Revenue from products

Revenue from sale'of goods at each of the centres is recognised on delivery of goods to the customers. Sales
are recorded at invoice value, net of discount, rebate, incentives and indirect taxes if any.

Contract Balances -

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Unearned and deferred revenue (‘contract liability’) is recognised when there are billings in excess of
revenues.

Interest income : .
Income from interest on time deposits is recognised on the time proportion method taking into consideration
the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rates using the effective interest rate (EIR).

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally
when shareholders approve the dividend.

e) Taxes
Income taxes consist of current taxes and changes in deferred tax liabilities and assets.

Current income tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer prohable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses if any. Cost directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment
are ready for use, as intended by the management.

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. The
cost of property, plant and equipment includes interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of
qualifying assets up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use and other incidental expenses incurred
up to that date.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the
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cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met (refer Note 12). Refer to Note
3 regarding significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions and provisions for further
information about the recorded Asset retirement liability.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is inciuded in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work in progress
Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are
carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Depreciation
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated
residual value.

Depreciation on all tangible Property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the assets at rates specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, which is as
follows: :

Particulars Useful life (Years)
Plant and Equipment 13 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office equipment ' 5 years
Computers :
e Servers 6 years
o Desktops/ laptops 3 years

- Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of lease, generally the lease period is 9 years.
- All assets costing Rs.5,000 or below are depreciated in full on pro-rata basis from the date of their
acquisition.

Depreciation on addition to Property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the
assets are acquired/installed. Depreciation on sale/deduction from Property, plant and equipment is
provided for upto the date of sale, deduction, discarding, as the case may be.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. The cost of
an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on
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making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset after its purchase / completion is recognised as an expense
when incurred unless it is probable that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic
benefits in excess of its originally assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can be measured
and attributed to the asset reliably, in which case such expenditure is added to the cost of the asset.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for
impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life as follows:

Particulars Useful life (Years)
Computer software 6 years
Mobile applications 3 years

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of each
financial year and the amortization method is revised to reflect the changed pattern.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of intangible assets are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

h) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are
capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity
on the qualifying assets is interrupted. In accordance with an opinion received from the expert advisory
committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the company has during the year capitalized
borrowing costs in respect of construction of qualifying assets completed within a period of five to seven
months.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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i} Leases

Till March 31, 2019

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease where risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor is classified as operating lease.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Company has ascertained that the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases and therefore are not
straight-lined. Hence, the lease payments are recognised on an accrual basis as per terms of the lease
agreement.

With effect from April 1, 2019

.Company as a lessee
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 effective from April 1, 2019 using modified retrospective approach.
For the purpose of preparation of Standalone Financial Information, management has evaluated the impact
of change in accounting policies required due to adoption of Ind AS 116 for year ended March 31, 2020.

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings and other equipment.
Other equipment majorly includes machines for providing services to customers. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases,
the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term, ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date

on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlyi
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The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

j) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost (on FIFO basis) and net realisable value. Cost includes all expenses
incurred in bringing the goods to their present location including octroi and other levies, transit insurance
and receiving charges. '

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

k) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount based on estimates of future cash flows arising from continuing use of such
assets and from its ultimate disposal. A provision for impairment loss is recognised where it is probable
that the carrying value of an asset exceeds the amount to be recovered through use or sale of the asset.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other
available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to
OCIL. For such propetties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation
surplus.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or cash generating units (“CGU?”) recoverable amount.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase.
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Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at March 31 and when circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or Company of
CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in
future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at March 31 at the CGU
level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

) Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of a leased facility. Decommissioning costs
are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and
are recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax
rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is
expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated
future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the
estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

m) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the
provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when an employee renders the
related service. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
The Company operates a funded defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. Benefits payable to eligible
employees of the Company with respect to gratuity, a defined benefit plan is accounted for on the basis of
an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date. In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,
the plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on
termination of employment in an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of
service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The present value of such obligation is
determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service cost and fair value of plan
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assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be settled. The expected return on
plan assets is based on the assumed rate of return of such assets.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Accumulated leave is treated as short-term employee benefit as the Company has no unconditional right to
defer the liability. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss.

n) Employee Share-based payments

The Company has formulated employee Stock Option Plan as approved & modified by Compensation
Committee / Board of Directors of the Company from time to time. The Plan provides for grant of Stock
Options to eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to acquire equity shares of the Company
that vest in a graded manner and that are to be exercised within a specified period. The options are to be
converted into one share at a predetermined price to be exercised in accordance with the plan.

The exercise price of the options shall be fair market value on the date of grant per option. That cost is
recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit
for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense
had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is
cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is
expensed immediately through profit or loss.
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The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share,

Under the approved plan, the company has issued shares to the VLCC Employee Welfare Trust at fair
market value determined on the date of issue which is holding the shares on behalf of the employees.

0) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

o Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is most applicable to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is

calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an

integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses

arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are

recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial

assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the trade receivable (financial assets) and credit risk exposure.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates
over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense
in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the
P&L.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement -

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings or as payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, etc.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in
OCI. These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as
a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined
as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

p) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only
if their conversion to equity shares would' decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary
operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period,
unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently
for each period presented

q) Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques in hand, credit
card receivables and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as
they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

r) Investments

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Company controls an investee if and only if
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the Company has:

e Power over the investeg (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee

e Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

¢ The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Long-term investments are carried individually at cost less provision for diminution, other than temporary,

in the value of such investments. Current investments are carried individually, at the lower of cost and fair

value. Cost of investments include acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

s) Measurement of EBITDA

The Company presents Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) in the
statement of profit or loss, this is not specifically required by Ind AS 1. The terms EBITDA are not defined
in Ind AS. Ind AS compliant Schedule III allows companies to present Line items, sub —line items and sub-
totals shall be presented as an addition or substitution on the face of the Financial Statements when such
presentation is relevant to an understanding of the company’s financial position or performance or to cater
to industry /sector- specific disclosure requirements or when required for compliance with the amendments
to the Companies Act or under the Indian Accounting Standards.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and Loss. In its
measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs, finance
income and tax expense.

2.2 New Accounting Standards

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual
reporting period commencing April 1, 2019:

a) Ind AS 116, Leases

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-Incentives and
Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease).
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet.

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adoption, with the date of
initial application on April. 01, 2019. The Company elected to use the transition practical expedient to not
reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at April 01, 2019. Instead, the Company applied the
standard only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix C of
Ind AS 17 at the date of initial application. The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for
lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain
a purchase option (short-term leases), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value
(low-value assets). Refer note 2 (i) for the accounting policy of leases.

b) Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments — Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes

According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority
accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their
income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the
tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is insignificant in the financial statements.
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¢) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement — Amendments to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits

The amendments require an entity : i) to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net
interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and ii) to
recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a
surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling, The
Company does not have any impact on account of this amendment.

d) Amendment to’'Ind AS 12, Income Taxes

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit
or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity ori ginally recognised those past
transactions or events. The Company does not have any impact on account of this amendment.

The Company had to change its accounting policies as a result of adopting Ind AS 116. This is disclosed in
Note 28. The other amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

Standards issued but not effective:

The new and amended standards that are notified, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the
Company’s standalone financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these new
and amended standards if applicable, when they become effective:

(i) Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material

The amendments to Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors align the definition of ‘material’ across the standards and
clarify certain aspects of the definition. The new definition states that, ’Information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which
provide financial information about a specific reporting entity. The amendments clarify that materiality
will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements.

A misstatement of information is material if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made
by the primary users.

These amendments are applicable prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020.
The amendments to the definition of material are not expected to have a significant impact on the
Company’s standalone financial statements.

(ii) Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement provide a number
of reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by interest rate benchmark
reform. A hedging relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainties about the timing and or
amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument.

The amendments to Ind AS 107 prescribe the disclosures which entities are required to make for hedging
relationships to which the reliefs as per the amendments in Ind AS 109 are applied. These amendments are
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applicable for annual periods beginning on or after the 1 April 2020. These amendments are not expected to
have a significant impact on the Company’s standalone financial statements.

3. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in: conformity with Indian Accounting Standards requires the
Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
(including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management
believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future
results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates
are recognized in the periods in which the results are known/ materialise.

3.1 Significant judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
Jjudgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for certain facilities and office premises. The
Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as
the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the fair
value of the asset, that it significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties are not transferred
to the Company and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company bases its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using a black-scholes
model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs
to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and
making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 33.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
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making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and
gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 31.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered
by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several
lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the
lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or
not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate. Further details on leases are disclosed in note 28.

Estimation of incremental borrowing rate

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted normally using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company uses an incremental borrowing rate, term and currency of the
contract. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) as the discount rate. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company *would have to pay', which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available. Further details on leases are disclosed in note 28.
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4, Property, plant & equipment

Freehold  Plantand Furniture Vehicles Office Leaschold Computer Total Capital
Land equipment and fixtures equipment improvements equipment work in
progress #
Gross Block
{Af cost)
At April 01,2018 261 4,598 39] 210 724 6,039 139 12,362 -
Add: Additions - 240 66 5 147 169 11 639 -
Less: Disposals - (479) (50) (3) (169) (1,015) (33) {1,750) -
At April 01,2019 261 4,359 407 212 702 5,194 117 11,251 -
Add: Additions 18 351 28 - 54 140 - B 594 27
Less. Disposals - (175) (49) - (93) (437) (10 (764)
At March 31, 2020 279 4,535 387 212 663 4,897 109 11,082 27
Depreciation
At April 01,2018 - 951 162 45 338 2,329 74 3,898
Add: Charge for the year - 545 67 23 159 1,031 33 1,858
Less: Disposals - {375) 47 (1) (161) (1.005) (32) (1,622)
At April 01,2019 - 1,120 182 67 335 2,355 76 4,134
Add: Charge for the year - 427 57 24 122 722 19 1,372
Less: Disposals - (119} (41) - (83) (406) {10) (660)
As at Mareh 31, 2020 3 1,428 198 91 374 2,671 85 4,847
Net carrying value
At April 01,2018 261 3,648 229 165 386 3.710 65 8,462 =
At March 31, 2019 261 3,239 226 145 367 2.838 41 7,117 -
At March 31, 2020 279 3,107 189 121 289 2,226 24 6,230 27

# Capital work in progress majorly comprise of leaschold improvements,
Disposals includes asset write off of Gross book value Rs. 239 Lakhs ( Net Book Value Rs. 99 Lakhs)

h

. Intangible assets

Computer Goodwill Total
Gross Block
(At cost)
At April 01, 2018 610 1 611
Add: Additions 15 - 15
Less: Disposals - - -
At April 01, 2019 625 1 626
Add: Additions 11 - 11
Less: Disposals - - -
Al Mareh 31,2020 636 1 637
Amortisation and impairment
At April 01,2018 192 1 193
Add; Amortisation 86 - 86
At April 01,2019 278 1 279
Add: Amortisation 85 - 85
At March 31, 2020 363 1 364
Net carrying value
At Mareh 31, 2019 347 - 347
At March 31, 2020 273 - 273
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6. Investment in Subsidiaries

Ungquoted equity investments fully paid-up
Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries (at cost)

43.75,000 (March 31, 2019: 43,75,000) Equity shares of INR 10 each fully
paid up of VLCC Personal Care Limited

44,50,457 (March 31, 2019: 37,79,316) Ordinary shares of US $ 1 each
fully paid up of VLCC International Inc., British Virgin Islands

Total

Aggregate value of unquoted equity investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in value on investments

7. Financial assets
7(a) Non-current investments

[nvestment in government securities (Unquoted)(at amortised cost) *
6 year National Savings Certificate
(pledged with sales tax authorities)

* Absolute amounts before rounding off are Rs 23,000 as at March 31 5
2020 and March 31, 2019.

7(b) Loans
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated) (at amortised
cost)

Non Current
Security deposits
- Considered good
- Considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful deposits

Current
Security deposits
Advance to employees

March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
1,900 1,900

9,283 8,445

11,183 10,345

11,183 10,345

March 31,2020 March 31,2019
0 0

March 31,2020 March 31, 20§

661 848
156 156
817 1,004
(156) (156)
661 848

March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019
444 327
91 8z
534 409
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7(c) Trade receivables
Unsecured
- Receivables from related parties, considered good (refer note 29)
- Receivables from others, considered good
- Considered doubtful

Less :Provision for trade receivables
- Considered doubtfuli

Total Trade receivables

March 31,2020  March 31, 2019

20 16
197 262

86 50
303 328
(86) (50)
218 278
218 278

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other
person, or from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.,

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of not more than 30 days.

7(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
- On current account
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Cash on hand *
Cheques on hand
Credit card receivables

* Includes foreign currencies equivalent to

7(e) Other Bank Balances
Non Current
Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months

Current
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than
twelve months

Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months

March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
215 498
9 8
100 904
35 649
10 395
369 2,454
5 5
106 91
106 91
32 35
14 19
46 54
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7(f) Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise ) (at amortised
cost)

Non Current
Interest accrued on bank deposits

Current
Insurance claims
Interest accrued on bank deposits
Other receivable

8. Inventories
(At lower of cost or net realisable value)

Consumables #
Stock in trade (acquired for trading)
Total ’

# including stock in transit
Inventory includes products mainly for Beauty and Slimming Services

9. Other assets
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Non- Current
Capital advances
Deferred Lease -security deposit
Advance to VLCC Employee Welfare Trust (Refer Note 29)
Tax paid under protest
(i) VAT/Service tax/Custom tax
(ii) Luxury Tax
Advance Rent

Current

Advance given to suppliers

Balances with government authorities
Deferred Lease -security deposit
Prepaid expenses

(This page has been intentionally left blank)

March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
1 1
1 1

28 -

0 -

70 51

98 51

March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
1,684 1,435
737 583
2,420 2,018
20 -

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

4 5

- 175
33 3
22 23
18 18
14 6
91 260
228 121
- 18

. 85
63 96
291 320
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10. Share Capital

March 31,2020  March 31, 2019

Authorised share capital
5,00,00,000 (March 31, 2019: 50,000,000) Equity
shares of INR 10 each 5,000 5,000

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
3.76,68,283 (March 31, 2019: 3,76,68,283) Equity 3,767 3,767
shares of INR 10 each with voting rights

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 3,767 3,767

a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, No. of shares Amount
subscribed and fully paid (In Lakhs)

At April 01, 2018 377 3,767
Issued during the year - -
At March 31, 2019 - 377 3,767
Issued during the year - -
At March 31, 2020 377 3,767

b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of the
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupeses.
The Dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the
ensuing Annual general meeting.

During the year no interim/ final dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Equity Shares of INR 10 each No. of shares | % holding in | No. of shares % holding in the
fully paid (in Lakhs) the equity (in Lakhs) equity shares
shares
Mr. Mukesh Luthra 91.8 24.37% 91.8 24.37%
Mrs. Vandana Luthra 167.1 44.35% 167.1 44.35%
Leon International Limited 514 13.65% 51.4 13.65%
M/s Indivision India Partners 56.9 15.11% 56.9 ) 15.11%
Total 367.2 367.2

d) Shares reserved for issue under options g/3
|

& e [
For details of shares reserved for issue undér;

X gédkstock option (ESOP) plan of the Company ,
- B
please refer note 33. 4
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11. Financial Liabilities

11(a) Borrowings March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Non current

Term loans from banks (Secured) (Refer Note (1) below) 2,062 3,226

Term Loans - others (Unsecured) (Refer Note 2(i) below) 700 700

Vehicle loans from banks/others (Secured) 54 76

Current maturities of long term borrowings disclosed under

"other current financial liabilities" [Refer Note 11(c)] (360) (1210
2,256 2,791

Current

Term Loans - others (Unsecured) (Refer Note 2(ii) below) 700 -

Cash credit (Secured) (Refer Note (3) below) 546 308

Cash credit (Unsecured) (Refer Note (3) below) 500 500
1,746 808

Aggregate secured loans 2,663 3,610

Aggregate unsecured loans 1,900 1,200

March 31,2020  March 31,2019
(1) Details of terms of repayment and security provided in respect of

the secured long-term borrowings:

Term loan from banks:

HDFC Bank [Refer Note (i)] - 167

ICICI Bank [Refer Note (ii)] 575 850

Yes Bank [Refer Note (iii)] 419 714

Yes Bank [Refer Note (iv)] 1,068 1,495
2,062 3,226

Security details:

(i) The loan is secured by a first pari passu charge on all the entire current assets and movable fixed assets

of the company, both present and future including escrow on credit card receivables.

(i) The loan is secured by a first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets both
present and future. Originally the loan is repayable in 60 monthly instalments out of these 23 monthly
instalments of INR 25 Lakhs each along with interest at Base rate plus 0.9% are pending as on March
31, 2020.

(iii) The loan is secured by a first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets both
present and future. Originally the loan is repayable in 54 monthly instalments out of these balance 17
monthly instalments of INR 24.6 Lakhs along with interest at MCLR plus 0.50% are pending as on
March 31, 2020.

(iv) The loan is secured by a first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets both
present and future. Originally the loan is repayable in 60 monthly instalments out of these balance 30
monthly instalments of INR 35.6 Lakhs along with interest at MCLR plus 0.50% are pending as on
March 31, 2020.




VLCC Health Care Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
CIN No.-U74899DL1996PLC082842

(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated) 4
(v) The Reserve Bank of India, in March this year, offered a relief measure to the borrowers in the form of
EMI moratorium on all term loans for three months till May 31, 2020. This was further extended by
another three months till August 31, 2020. In total, Reserve Bank of India has offered a moratorium of
six-months between March 1, 2020 and August 31, 2020. The Company has opted to avail this relief and
defer its principal and interest payments in relation to its outstanding term loans as on March 31, 2020.

(vi) Term loan from ICICI Bank contain certain financial debt covenants Total Debt to EBITDA ratio at
standalone level, Total Debt to NCA ratio at consolidated level and Total Debt to ATNW ratio at
consolidated level. All the covenants have been complied with during the year. The Group has also
satisfied all other debt covenants prescribed in the terms of bank loan. The other loans do not carry any
financial debt covenants.

(2) Details of Term Loans - others (Unsecured):-

(1) The unsecured loan amounting to INR 700 Lakhs has been taken from Palm Land Hospitality Private
Limited and is payable within 3 years from the date of disbursement along with interest at 12% p.a.

(i) The unsecured loan amounting to INR 700 Lakhs has been taken fromi Mr. Mukesh Luthra, Chairman of
the Company and is interest free Loan. This is repayable on demand.

(3) Details of terms of repayment provided in respect of the secured current borrowings:

Cash Credit March 31,2020  March 31, 2019

Secured .

Yes Bank Limited [Refer Note (a)] 346 306

Axis Bank Limited [Refer Note (b)] 200 2
546 308

Unsecured

Yes Bank Limited [Refer Note (c)] 500 500
500 500

Total 1046 808

(a) The loan is secured by first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets (excluding
vehicle) both present and future and payable on demand along with interest at base rate plus 0.50%.

(b) The loan is secured by first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets both present
and future and payable on demand along with interest at base rate plus 1.10%.

(¢) The loan is payable on demand along with interest at Base rate plus 0.50%.
The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and interest during the year.

11(b). Trade payables March 31,2020  March 31, 2019

Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro

. . 6,572 7,116
enterprises and Small enterprises
Payable to related parties (refer note 29) 1,116 544
Total 7,688 7,660

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms.
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11(c).

11(d).

12.

Other financial liabilities

Current

Current maturities of long term borrowings
(Refer note 11(a))

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Security deposits received

Payable for capital purchases

Total

Other financial liabilities
Non- current
Security deposits received

Provisions

Non- current

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (Refer to note 31)

Other provisions
Provision for decommissioning liabilities

Current

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (Refer to note 31)
Provision for compensated absences

Other provisions
Provision for decommissioning liabilities

Provision for decommissioning liabilities

March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
560 1,211
79 29
11 95
416 515
1,066 1,850
March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
100 5
100 -
March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
606 495
606 495
30 31
30 31
636 526
124 92
8 188
132 280
15 11
15 11
147 291

Under few operating lease agreements entered by the Company, it has to incur restoration cost for
restoring lease premises to the original condition at the time of expiry of lease period. Approximately
50% of the outflow is expected to be in 1-3 years. Remaining outflow is expected to be in 4-9 years.

At the beginning of the year
Arising during the year
At the end of the year

March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
31 38
() @)
30 31
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13. Contract liabilities March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
Non-current
Contract liabilities 1036 852
1036 852
Current
Contract liabilities 4,110 5,369
4,110 5,369
5,146 6,221

Contract Liabilities consists of:

(1) revenue relating to unexecuted packages of beauty, slimming and educational Vocational training
services and for which amount has been received in advance from customers and are non refundable;
(i) revenue relating to franchisee sign up fee for which amount has been received in advance from
franchisor and are non refundable and are recognized over the period of contract with the franchisee.

14. Other liabilities March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
Non-current
Lease Equalisation - 158
Deferred Lease -security deposit 18 -
18 158
Current
Statutory dues 308 790
Advance from Franchisees/ Government 450 364
Deferred Lease -security deposit 7 -
Lease Equalisation - 43
' 766 1,197

15. Income tax

a) The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019
are:
Profit or loss

March 31,2020  March 31, 2019

Tax Expense:

Current tax = ‘ 4
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year - -
Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences - -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or

loss
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Other Comprehensive Income

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Income tax charged to OCI

b) Current tax asset/ (liabilities) (net)

Current tax assets 3,390 3322
Current tax (liabilities) /(Provision) (2,998) (2,998)
Current tax asset/ (liabilities) (net) 391 324
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit
multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2019,
As at As at
arch 20 31.2
Total c_:omprehensive income before tax from continuing (1.251) (864)
operations
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 27.82% (March 31, 2019:
34.608%) (338) (29
Donation expenses - -
Insurance claims receivable written off - -
Deferred tax not recorded (refer note (i)) 348 299
Others (net) - -
At the effective income tax rate - -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and
loss and other comprehensive income _ i
Balance Sheet: As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Deferred tax assets relates to the following
Dep.rec1at1(.\».nfamo‘rttsatlon on property, plant and 1,429 1,429
equipment/intangible assets
Employee benefits 127 127
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 82 82
Provision for doubtful assets 2 2
Provision for doubtful deposits 54 54
Lease equalisation reserve 74 74
Carry forward losses/unabsorbed depreciation 873 873
Other 78 78
Total deferred tax assets (Net) 2,719 2,719

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

As at

As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
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Statement of profit and loss " Asat As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Deferred tax assets relates to the following (refer note (i))

Employee benefits - "
Depreciation/amortisation on property, plant and '

equipment/intangible assets

Carry forward losses/unabsorbed depreciation - -
Provision for doubtful trade receivables - -
Deferred Revenue & i
Other . 2
Total deferred tax assets (Net) - .

Movement in Deferred tax assets March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
At the beginning of the year 2,719 2,719
Tax credit recognised in profit and loss N - -
Tax credit recognised in OCI - -
At the end of the year 2,719 2,719
(1) As the Company has brought forward unused tax losses, deferred tax asset has been recognised to the
extent of probable future taxable profits over next few years and accordingly no incremental deferred
tax credit has been recognised on the timing differences and tax losses arisi ng during the current year.
Deferred tax asset not recognised due to reasonable certainity amounting to INR 398 Lakhs (March 31,
2019: 449 Lakhs)

(This page has been intentionally left blank)
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16. Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of services [Refer Note (i) below]
Sale of products [traded goods]
Revenue from contracts with customers

Notes:

(i) Sale of services comprises:
Beauty and slimming services

Tuition fees

Income from Franchisees

Royalty income

Total - Sale of services

Sale of products [traded goods]
Revenue from contracts with customers
(iii) Timing of revenue recognition

Goods/Services transferred at a point in time
Services transferred over time

(iv) India
Outside India

Revenue from contracts with customers

(v) Contract balances
Trade receivables
Contract liabilities

Note:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
33,156 36,333
1,287 1,644
34,443 37,977
25,880 29,064
6,429 6,401
209 237
638 631
33,156 36,333
1,287 1,644
34,443 37,977
5,886 5,744
28.557 32,233
34,439 37,946
4 31
34,443 37,977
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
218 278
5,146 6,221

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 days.

Contract liabilities includes advance from customers received for supply of services.
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(vi) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
March 31,2020  March 31,2019

Revenue as per contracted price* 34,443 37,977
Revenue from contracts with customers 34,443 37.977
* Contracted prices are net of discounts

(vii) Particulars pertaining to deferred Revenue

(Before Deferred Income of Corporate Guarantee) March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Balance at the beginning 6,095 5,304
Revenue recognised during the year from 5,303 4,703

opening deferred revenue

(viii) Performance obligations

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)

Revenue expected to be recognised upon delivery of Services

Within one year 4,110 5,369
More than one year 1,036 852

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of goods to the customers. The unsatisfied
performance obligations represents goods not delivered to the customers by end of the reporting period.

17. Other income March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Miscellaneous Income 52 99
52 99
18. Finance income March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Interest from banks on deposits
[Tax deducted at source INR 1 Lakh 11 9
(March 31, 2019: INR 1 Lakh)]
Interest on Security Deposits at amortised cost (refer note (i)) 93 130
Interest on loan to employees 1 2
Interest on Income tax refund - 11
Total 104 152
Note (i)

[nterest on security deposits at fair value has been measured using effective interest rate method and the
difference between fair value and transaction value of the security deposit has been recognised as
deferred lease expense and it has been added to ROU and amortised as depreciation as per Ind AS 116.
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19. Cost of Materials Consumed

20.

21.

22,

23.

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of material consumed

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1,435 1,589
4,771 4,315
6,206 5,904
1,684 1,435
4,522 4,469

There are no components that individually account for more than 10% of total value of consumables.

(Increase) / decrease in inventories-Traded goods
Inventories at the end of the year:

Inventories at the beginning of the year:

Decrease in inventories

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expenses (Refer to note 31)
Staff welfare expenses

Finance cost

Interest on term loan

Interest on cash credit

Interest- others

Other Finance Cost

Interest on lease liabilities (Refer to note 28)

Unwinding of discount and effect of changes in discount rate
on provisions

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of Property, plant & equipment (Refer to note 4)
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer to note 5)
Amortization of Right-of-Use Assets (Refer to note 28)

Total

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
737 583
583 326
(154) (257)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
9,834 12,064
599 466
149 129
411 595
10,993 13,254

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
305 413

105 83

99 41
1112 1023

2047 -
3 4
3671 1564

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1,372 1,858
85 86

4,343 -
5.801 1,944




24, Other expenses

Rent [Refer to Note 28]
Generator Rent and maintenance charges
Electricity and water charges
Repairs and maintenance
- Building
- Equipment
- Others
insurance
Rates and taxes
Communication Expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenses [Refer to Note 30]
Legal and professional expenses
Doctor's consultancy charges
Payments to auditors [Refer Note (i) below]
Vehicle running and maintenance
House keeping charges
Membership and subscription
Office expenses
Laundry Expenses
Security Charges
Directors sitting fees
Advertisement expenses
Sales Promotion expenses
Exhibition Expenses
Student Training expenses
Loss on fixed assets sold/ written off
Net loss/(gain) on foreign exchange transactions
Provision/write back for doubtful trade receivables (Net of
bad debts written off Rs. 39 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: 156
Lakhs)
Advances written off

Miscellaneous Expenses
Total

(This page has been intentionally left blank)

March 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2019
298 5,123
188 221

1,006 1,046
304 316
66 43
591 827
98 103
64 70
209 232
957 1,610
52 78

- 5
393 582
827 963
33 33
58 86
892 850
34 11
150 203
159 185
114 155
12 23
2,394 3,001
447 462
147 199

7 78

19 3
28 44
55 (1)
26 6
511 299
10,135 16,846




24,

25,

Other expenses (Cont'd)

Note (i)

Payment to Auditors

Payments to the auditors comprises (net of service tax input
credit, where applicable):

To statutory auditors:

- Audit Fee

- Other services

Reimbursement of expenses

To cost auditors for cost audit
Total

Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the
basic and diluted EPS computation:
Nominal value of equity shares

Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity shareholders for
computing Basic and Dilutive EPS (A)

- Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the year for computing Basic EPS (B)

Dilutive effect of share based payments 0a weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year for computing Diluted EPS (C)

Basic earning per share (A/B)
Diluted earning per share (A/C)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
¥
24 24
5 5
2 2
31 31
2 2
33 33
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
10.00 10.00
b(1,251) (864)
376.68 376.68
376.68 376.68
(3.32) (2.29)
(3.32) (2.29)

There have been no transactions involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and

the date of authorisation of these financial statements.

(This page has been intentionally left blank)
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26. Payables to micro and small enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which
recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the entrepreneurs
memorandum number as allocated after filing of the memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable
to such enterprises as at the year-end has been made in the financial statements based on information available with the Company

as under:

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
The amounts remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end of the year
-Principal 149 146
-interest 15 4
-the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day B -
during each accounting year;
-the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) ' 20
but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006;
-The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year 1y )
-the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid
to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible 15 -
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

27. Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(1) Contingent liabilities March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Guarantees/Letters of credit [Refer Note (a) below] 6,926 4,921
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:-

- VAT demand [Refer Note (b) below] 122 114
- Service Tax [Refer Note (c) below] 23 29
- Luxury Tax [Refer Note (d) below] 32 32
- Customs Duty [Refer Note (e) below] 91 91
- Income Tax [Refer Note (f) below] 80 149

7,274 5,334

(a) The Company has given guarantee/letter of credits to certain banks in respect of credit facilities granted to its subsidiaries:-

Guarantees/ Letters of credit  In respect to Credit

Giviiitn Facilities granted to Maturity Date March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
ICICI Bank VLCC International LLC  September 1, 2021 = 2,193
HDFC Bank VLCC International Inc. November 30, 2020 1,364 1,247
Axis Bank VLCC International LLC  September 2, 2020 - 1,010
Mashreq Bank, Dubai VLCC International LLC ~ January 31, 2022 - 471
National Bank of Fujairah, Dubai VLCC International LLC June 23, 2024 -

- O 4,921
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(b) Company has 12 cases with respect to demand of VAT for different states for which appeals are pending with Commissioner
{Appeals) of respective state.

(c) Company has 10 cases for service tax out of which, 6 are pending with CESTAT and 4 with Appellate authorities .

(d) Company has one case of luxury tax which is pending with Appeliate tribunal (commercial tax).

(e) Demand for customs duty aggregating to INR 91 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: 91 Lakhs) for the year 2012-16 is disputed by the
Company and the Company had preferred an appeal with CESTAT. On similar matter for another consignment, CESTAT vide
its order dated June 30, 2017 has already set aside the demand and gave order in favour of the Company. -

(f) Income Tax demands:

- Demand for assessment year 2010-11 is disputed by the Company and the Company had preferred an appeal before

Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) which was substantially decided in favour of the Company in the financial year 2016-
I'7 and consequently the demand has been reduced to INR 5.5 Lakhs from INR 97.2 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is pending with
Income Tax Appellant Tribunal (ITAT). The Company had already deposited INR 11 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: INR 20 Lakhs)
under protest.

Demand for assessment year 2011-12 is disputed by the Company and the Company had preferred an appeal before
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) which was substantially decided in favour of the Company in Oct 2020 and
consequently the demand has been reduced to INR 48.1 Lakhs from INR 116 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is pending for hearing
with Income Tax Appellant Tribunal (ITAT). The Company has deposited INR 10 Lakhs (March 31, 2019; INR 10 Lakhs)
under protest,

- Demand for assessment year 2012-13 is disputed by the Company and the Company had preferred an appeal before
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) which was substantially decided in favour of the Company in the financial year 2016-
17 and consequently the demand has been reduced to INR 6.9 Lakhs from INR 73 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is pending with
ITAT which is pending for hearing.

Demand for assessment year 2013-14 is disputed by the Company and the Company had preferred an appeal before

Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) which was substantially decided in favour of the Company in the financial year 2017-

18 and consequently the demand has been reduced to INR 4.4 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is pending with ITAT which is pending

for hearing.

Demand for income tax aggregating to INR 22 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: INR 22 Lakhs) for the assessment year 2014-15 is

disputed by the Company and the Company has preferred an appeal before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) which was

substantially decided in favour of the Company in the financial year 2018-19 and consequently the demand has been reduced to

INR 5.7 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is pending with ITAT which is pending for hearing,

Demand for income tax aggregating to INR 9.8 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: 9.8 Lakhs) for the assessment year 2015-16 is disputed
by the Company and the Company has preferred an appeal which is pending for hearing before ITAT.

Based on the provisions of various laws, the Company has been legally advised that the ultimate likelihood of the above
demands being decided against the Company is not probable and accordingly, no provision has been made in respect of the

Demand where likelihood of liability is remote :-

Demand for income tax aggregating to INR 2,726 Lakhs (March 31, 2019: INR 2,726 Lakhs) for the assessment year 2016-17
has been raised on account of disallowance of certain expenses on adhoc basis and taxes on revenue deferred to be recognised in
subsequent years. The Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) which is pending for
hearing. The company has also filed High-Pitched petition with the Principal CCIT (High Pitched Petition Committee). In view
of this petition, the demand is not being pursued by Department.

The Company has favourable orders from Hon’ble High Court of Delhi against timing of taxation of deferred revenue in earlier
years in its own case and also believes that the additions on account of disallowances of expenses on adhoc basis is not tenable,
The Company based on internal assessment supported by its legal counsel believes that the possibility of any liability devolving
upon the Company against such demands upon final settlement, is remote and hence no provision has been recognized in these
financial statements,

(ii) Commitments March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed
on capital account and not provided for;

- Tangible Assets
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Lease related disclosures

The Company has leases for beauty & wellness centres, vocational training institutes, office building, warchouses and related facilities and
equipments. With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability. Variable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are excluded from the initial measurement of the
lease liability and right of use assets, The Company classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manner to its property, plant and equipment,

Each lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company to sublease the asset
use asset can only be used by the Company. Some leases contain an option to extend the lease for a further term. The

to another party, the right-of-
Company is prohibited from

selling or pledging the underlying leased assets as security. For leases over office buildings and other premises the Company must keep those
properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in their original condition at the end of the lease, Further, the Company is required to pay

maintenance fees in accordance with the lease contracts,

Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability
The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

INR Lakhs
Particulars Marceh 31, 2020
Short-term leases 288
Variable lease payments i 10
Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended March 31, 2020 was INR 4958 Lakhs,
Maturity of lease liabilities
The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Future minimum lease payments were as follows:
March 31, 2020 Minimum lease payments due
Within 1 year 1-5 years Moo thens & Total
yeurs
Lease payments 4,990 15,861 2,567 23,418
Right-of-Use Assets and Lease liabilitics
Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2020;
Particulars Buildings &
Equipments
Balance as of April 1, 2019 (after adjusting prepaid rent and lease equalization reserve) 18,938
Additions (after adjusting prepaid rent) 1,662
Deletions ¢
Depreciation (4.343)
Balance as of March 31, 2020 16,257

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020:

Particulars

Year ended March

31.2020
Balance at the beginning 18,770
Additions 1,591
Deletions -
Finance cost accrued during the periad 2,047
Payment of lease liabilities (4.958)
Balance at the end 17,451

Impact on transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" and applied modified retrospective approach to all lease contracts existing as
at April 1, 2019. On transition, the adoption of new standard resulted in recognition of lease liability of Rs. 18,770 lakhs and corresponding right of
use asset of Rs. 18,938 lakhs (18,770 lakhs lease liability adjusted by opening prepaid asset 350 lakhs and 182 lakhs lease equalisation reserve),

For contracts in place as at April 1, 2019, Company has elected to apply the definition of a lease from Ind AS 17 and has not applied Ind AS 116 to

arrangements that were previously not identified as lease under Ind AS 17.

The Company has elected not to include initial direct costs in the measurement of the right-of-use asset for operating leases in existence at the date of

initial application of Ind AS 116, being April 1, 2019,

Instead of performing an impairment review on the right-of-use assets at the date of initial application, the Company has relied on its historic

assessment as to whether leases were onerous immediately before the date of initial application of Ind AS 116.

On transition, for leases previously accounted for as operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months and for leases of low-value
assets the Company has applied the optional exemptions to not recognise right-of-use assets but to account for the lease expense on a straight-line

basis over the remaining lease term.

On transition to Ind AS 116 the weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised was 11.50%.

The following is a reconciliation of total operating lease commitments at March 31, 2019 (as disclosed in the financial statements for the year ended

March 31, 2019} to the lease liabilities recognised at April 1,2019:
Total operating lease commitments disclosed as at March 3 1,2019
Reasonably certain extensions options

Operating lease liabilities before discounting

Discounting impact (using incremental borrowing rate)

504
25,760
26,264
(7,494)
18,770
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29. Related party transactions

[) Details of related parties:
Description of relationship
Names of related parties

(A) Subsidiary companies
VLCC Personal Care Ltd

VLCC Online services Private Limited

VLCC Wellness Research Centre Pvt Ltd
Vanitycube Mobile Spa And Salon Pvt Ltd
VLCC International Inc

VLCC International LLC *

VLCC Middle East LLC *

VLCC International Kuwait Health Care Institute Limited Liability Company *
VLCC International Qatar Co W.L.L. *

VLCC International Limited Liability Company - Oman**
VLCC Europe Limited

VLCC Healthcare Egypt LLC

Wyann International SDN BHD

VLCC Wellness (East Africa) Limited

VLCC Overseas Limited

VLCC Health Care (Bangladesh) Pvt Ltd

VLCC Personal Care (Bangladesh) Pvt Ltd
VLCC Healthcare Lanka (Pvt) Ltd

VLCC Education Lanka (Pvt) Ltd

VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd

Global Vantage Innovative Group Pte Ltd (Gvig)
Celblos Dermal Research Centre Pte Ltd

Excel Beauty Solution SDN BHD

Bellawave Cosmetics Pte Ltd

VLCC Holding (Thailand) Co.Ltd***

VLCC Wellness (Thailand) Co.Ltd

(B) Others - Controlled trust
VLCC Employee Welfare Trust #

* Out of this, 49% is held directly by VLCC International Inc. and for the balance 51% shareholding, the Company has entered into an
agreement with the other shareholders whereby the risk and rewards of the business rest entirely with VLCC International Inc. and
accordingly, VLCC International Inc. has 100% economic interest in these companies.

** Out of this, 70% is held directly by VLCC International Inc. and for the balance 30% shareholding, the Company has entered into an
agreement with the other shareholder whereby the risk and rewards of the business rest entirely with VLCC International Inc. and
accordingly, VLCC International Inc. has 100% economic interest in this company.

*#% VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd holds 49.90% of the voting rights in VLCC Holding (Thailand) Co.Ltd while other shareholder holds all the
Class A preference shares in VLCC Holding (Thailand) Co.Ltd. VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd also controls the affairs and the board of
directors of VLCC Holding (Thailand) Co.Ltd. The chairman is appointed by VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd and all significant rights in
respect of dividend is enjoyed by VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd. Accordingly, VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd is considered to be the holding
company of VLCC Holding (Thailand) Co.Ltd. '

# The Company has no rights on the variable returns from its involvement with investee and has no ability to affect those return through
its power over the investee. In the light of which , Company has not consolidated the Employee Welfare trust.
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(C) Key Management Personnel (KMP) as defined under Ind AS

Mukesh Luthra, Chairman

Jayant Khosla, Managing Director

Sandeep Ahuja, Executive Director till

December 31, 2019

Narinder Kumar, Group Chief Financial Officer

() Relative of Key Management Personnel

Vandana Luthra, Wife of Mukesh Luthra

I1) Details of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2020 and outstanding balance as at March 31, 2020:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A. Revenue
Sale of goods
- VLCC Healthcare (Bangladesh) Pvt Ltd - A
- Bellawave Cosmetics Pte Lid 3 25
- VLCC International Qatar Co W.L.L. i -
- Vanitycube Mobile Spa And Salon Private Limited 0 31
- VLCC Personal Care Limited - 0.5
C. Expenses
Purchase of Consumables
- VLCC Personal Care Limited 757 870
- VLCC Online Services Private Limited 29 I3
- Bellawave Cosmetics Pte Ltd 177 147
Rent
- VLCC Wellness Research Centre Pvt Ltd 45 59
Professional Fees
- Vandana Luthra 193 176
D. Investment
Subsidiary companies
Investment in Equity Shares
= VLCC International Inc. 726 796
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
E. Balance outstanding at the end of the year
Trade receivables
- Vanitycube Mobile Spa And Salon Private Limited 20 16
Other Financial Assets - Current
- VLCC Employee Welfare Trust 33 33

(This page has been intentionally left blank)




VLCC Health Care Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
CIN No.-U74899DL1996PLC082842

(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Trade payables

- VLCC Personal Care Limited

- VLCC Wellness Research Centre Pyt Ltd
- Bellawave Cosmetics PTE Ltd

- VLCC Online Services Private Limited

- Vandana Luthra

Guarantees (Refer note 27)
- VLCC International LLC
- VLCC International Inc

1II) Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Company

Short-term employee benefits

Termination benefits

Share-based payment transactions ( Refer Note 33)
Total compensation paid to key management
personnel

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
827 378
31 16
185 47
46 87
27 16
5,562 3,674
1364 1,247
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
331 198
8 9
339 207

Post-employment gratuity are incurred at company level and hence not provided here.”

also refer note 33 for employee share based payments.

IV) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement oceurs in cash.
For'the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related
parties (March 31, 2019: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the

related party and the market in which the related party operates.

30. Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, requires
that the board of directors of every eligible company, shall ensure that the company spends, in every financial year, at least 2% of the
average net profits of the company made during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of its Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy. The provision of CSR expenditure is not applicable to the company in view of losses in past 3 years.

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year*
(b) Amount spent during the year on :
- Donation To Khushii Foundation

" Year ended
March 31, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019
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31. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
a) Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contribution towards employees’ provident fund, and employees® state insurance plan scheme. Under the
schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost, as specified in the rules of the schemes, to these
defined contribution schemes. The Company has recognized during the year as expense towards contribution to these plans as below:

For the year For the year
ended March 31, ended Mareh 31,
2020 2019
Provident fund 599 466
Employees’ state insurance scheme 116 170
Total 715 636

b) Gratuity scheme

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service
is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age,
This is a funded benefit plan for qualifying employees. The Company makes contributions to the VLCC Health Care Limited
Employees Group Gratuity Scheme("Gratuity Trust"). LIC policies are taken by the Gratuity Trust created by Company to cover the
liability of the Company. The scheme provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment
or on termination of employment subject to a maximum of INR 20 Lakhs. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.
The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of profit or loss and the
funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet:

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

Change in benefit obligation

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the 666 544
year
Add: Current service cost 101 96
Add: Past service cost - -
Add: Interest cost 48 41
Add: Actuarial (gain) / loss 0 67
Less: Benefits paid (79) (82)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the
736 666
year
Change in plan assets .
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 79 106
Add: Expected return on plan assets 3 8
Add: Contribution by the Company 0 50
Less: Benefits paid (79) (82)
Add: Actuarial gain / (loss) 1 (3)
Plan assets at the end of the year 6 79
Present value of obligation 736 666
Less: Fair value of plan assets (6) (79)
Net assets/(liability) 730 587
Liability/ (Asset) recognized in the financial statements 730 587
Current 124 92

Non-current 606 495
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31. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit pians (Cont'd)

Net defined benefit Cost/(Income) included in
Statement of Profit & Loss at period end
Add: Current service cost
Add: Past service cost
Add: Interest cost
Net cost

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit
plans recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Effect of Change in Financial Assumptions
Effect of Change in Demographic assumptions
Effect of Experience Adjustments

Return on Plan Assets (Excluding Interest)
Total Remeasurements Recognised in OCI
(Gain)/Loss

Financial assumptions

Discount rate

Rate of increase in compensation levels
Demographic assumptions

Retirement Age (years)

Mortality Rate

Employee Turnover / Attrition Rate - All Ages

Estimate of amount of contribution in the immediate
next year

Composition of the plan assets is as follows:
Bond Fund

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2020 is as shown below:

Defined Benefit Obligation — Discount Rate +1%
Defined Benefit Obligation — Discount Rate -1%
Defined Benefit Obligation — Salary Escalation Rate +1%
Defined Benefit Obligation — Salary Escalation Rate -1%

The expected benefit payments in future years is as follows:
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2022
March 31, 2023
March 31, 2024
March 31, 2025
March 31, 2025 to March 31, 2029
March 31, 2026 to March 31, 2030

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
101 96
0 0
43 33
144 129
39 10.46
(0) 0.00
(39) 36.68
(1) 3
(1) 70
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
6.24% 7.19%
4.5% 4.5%
60 years 60 years
TALM [2006-2008]TALM [2006-2008]
15% 15%
131 129
100% 100%
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
41 (36)
45 40
46 40
(42) (37)
" NA 106
126 130
134 139
147 155
150 166
166 NA
NA 1,294
1,332 NA

‘The weighted average duration of the detined benetit plan obli gation at the end of'the reporting period is 5.27 years (March 31, 2019;

5.29 years).
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32. Segment Reporting

The Company's operations predominantly relates to providing beauty and slimming services including sales of related products through
wellness centres and vocational trainings at Institutes for imparting educational trainings relating to beauty, slimming and fitness, Based on the
management approach as defined in [nd AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and
allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators pertaining to following two reportable segments:

(i) Slimming & beauty Services

{ii) Educational Vocational training for imparting education relating to beauty and nutrition.

The Company operations are in India and thus no geographic segment is required.

Segment revenue and results

The expenses and income which are not directly attributable to any business segment are shown as unallocable expenditure

{net of unallocable income).
Segment assets and liabilities

Assels and liabilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment. All other assets and

lishilities are disclosed as unallncahle. Fixed assets that are used interchaneeahlv amonest seoments are not allocated fo seements.

The measurement principles of segments are consistent with those used in preparation of these financial assets. There are no

inter-segment transfers.

Beauty & |Educational| Total Beauty & |Educational Total
Reportable Segments Slimming | Vocational | March 31, [ Slimming | Voeational| March 31,
Services Training 2020 Services | Training 2019
Revenue
Sales 27,654 6,789 34,443 31,178 6,799 37,977
Other Income 48 4 52 91 8 99
Total Revenue 27,702 6,793 34,495 31,269 6,807 38,076
Result
Segment Expenses 26,193 5,987 32,179 31,733 5,795 37,528
Segment Result 1,509 807 2,316 (464) 1,011 548
Finance Costs (3,671) (1,564)
Finance Income 104 152
Taxes = &
Net Profit After Tax (1,251) (864)
Other Information
Beauty & |Educational| Total Beauty & |Educational  Total
Reportable Segments Slimming | Vocational | March 31, | Slimming | Vocational| March 31,
Services Training 2020 Services | Training 2019
Segment Assets 23,711 4310 28,020 12,982 1,588 14,570
Unallocated Assets 13,902 13,065
Total Assets 41,922 27,636
Segment Liabilities 27,445 5,176 32,620 14,551 2,287 16,838
Unallocated Liabilities 4,562 4,810
Total Liabilities 37,183 21,648
Other Disclosures
Capital Expenditure (including capital 729 1,106
advances and capital work in progress)
Depreciation and amortization
On fixed assets and Right-of-Use Assets 5,801 1,944
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33. Disclosures on Employee share based payments

Emplovee Stock Option Scheme

In a general meeting held on June 26, 2007, the shareholders of the company through a special resolution approved an
employee stock option plan which provides for grant of Stock Options to eligible employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries to acquire equity shares of the Company. The options are to be converted into one equity share at a
predetermined price determined at the time of the grant. The options granted vest in a graded manner and are to be
exercised within a period of 6 years from the date of vesting. Under the approved plan, the company has issued
941,706 shares in tranches to the VLCC Employee Welfare Trust at fair market value determined on various date of
issue and the trust is holding the shares on behalf of employees till the period the granted options are exercised by the
employees in accordance with the plan. Out of these, 450,193 Options have been exercised by 12 employees on May
04, 2015.

The ESOP plan 2007 was replaced/substituted with the approval of shareholders at general meeting held on January
12, 2016, with a new plan called "VLCC Employee Stock Option Plan 2015" and all the outstanding and not granted,
lapsed options lying under the present VLCC Employee Stock Option Plan 2007 as on December 1 1, 2015 had been
transferred to the new Plan and accordingly existing ESOP Plan 2007 stands cancelled and be absorbed in VLCC
ESOP Plan 2015. The Plan got modified by Shareholders vide its meeting on January 10, 2019 with respect to options
to be granted to Managing Director. The vesting of the options to the Managing Director will be after 3 years from
grant date subject to achievement of certain profitability as approved by compensation committee. The Company
granted 376,680 options to Managing director on January 10, 2019.

Employee stock options details as on the Balance Sheet date are as follows:

Particulars During the year ended During the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Options Weighted average Options Weighted average
(Numbers) | exercise price per (Numbers) exercise price per
option (INR) option (INR)

Option outstanding at the beginning 4,44,680 169 89,571 81
of the year
Granted during the year: - - 3,76,680 183
Vested during the year: - - - -
Exercised during the year:; - - - -
Lapsed/Forfeited during the year: 10,000 190 21,571 47
Options outstanding at the end of the 4,34,680 169 4,44,680 169
year:
Options available for grant: 56,833 46,833

The weighted average contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2020 was 6 years (March 31,
2019: 6 years).

No options granted during the year. The weighted average fair value of the options granted during March 31, 2019, is
Rs. 183. ,

The range of exercise price for the options outstanding at the end of the year was INR 56 - Rs 192 (March 31, 2019:
INR 56 - INR 192).

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 3 1,2019

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Dividend yield (%) NA 0%
Expected volatility (%) NA 0.50%
Risk—free interest rate (%) NA 7.48%
Expected life of share options (years) : NA : . 6 years
Weighted average share price (INR ) NA 115.23
Model used NA Black Scholes
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34,

Financial instruments - Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables, borrowings, and capital creditors. Further, the Company has given puarantee to various
banks for providing loan to its subsidiaries. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to
support ity operations. The Company’s principal financial assets includes security deposits, trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior level management oversees the management of these risks and is
supported by team handling Treasury function that advises on the appropriate financial risk governance framework to mitigate potential adverse effects on the
financial performance of the company.

A. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk.
The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 3 1, 2020 and March 31, 2019. Sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is
the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of
gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities.
i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with {loating interest rates.
Company does not have any fixed rate borrowings as at year end.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, being a 0.50% increase or decrease in the interest rate, with all
other variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:
Increase/ decrease in - Effect on profit/ loss
basis points before tax
March 31, 2020
INE Borrowings +50 (20}
INR Borrowings =50 20
March 31,2019
INR Borrowings +50 (24)
INR Borrowings -50 24
ii) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is
denominated in a foreign currency),

The Company has transactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases in currencies other than the C{ompzmy‘s functional currency, which is INR.
The company's financial state of afTairs can be affected by movements in foreign currencies, primarily US Dollar, Euro and $GD.

The Company does not hedge any foreign currency exposure as the amount involved is non material as of now.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in different currencies are as follows:

In equivalent INR Lakhs

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Azat Financial assets Financial liabilities  Financial assets l'-:m:!rfc.lal

liabilities
United States Dollar (USD) - 326 23 343
United States Dollar (SGD) - 185 - 47
Total ) - 511 23 391

The Company's exposure to foreign currency arises where Company holds financial assets and financial liabilities denominated in currency different from the
functional currency of the Company. A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the INR, US dollar or other foreign currencies against all other
currencies at 31 March would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected equity and profit or loss

by the amounts shown below. =
§744 v LN
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34,

Finaneial instruments - Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

Change in foreign  Effeet on profit

currency rate before tax
March 31, 2020
US Dollars +5% 16
-5% (16)
5GD +5% 9
-5% (9)
March 31,2019
US Dollars +5% 16
-5% (16)
SGD +5% 2
-5% @

B. Credit risk

35.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if 2 customer fails to meet its contractual obligations.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure. Significant revenue is collected by the Company in
advance before rendering the services to the retail customers.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net) as of the reporting date is as follows:

Less than 6 months More than 6 Total
months
Trade Receivables as of March 31, 2019 159 119 278
Trade Receivables as of March 31, 2020 188 30 218

Y

. Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafis and bank loans. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, borrowing liabilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, profile of financial assets and liabilities. It maintains
adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an optimised cost. The table below provides the details regarding contractual maturities of financial
liabilities

Asat As at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019

Less than 1 year

- Borrowings 1,746 808
- Trade payables 7,852 7.806
- Other financial liabilities 1,066 1,850
Total 10,665 10,463
More than 1 year

- Borrowings 2,256 2,791
Total . 2,256 2,791

Capital Management :

The Company's policy is to maintain strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of business. The management monitors the return on capital and profitability.

The Company secks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the

shareholder value,
O i
" \Z{j;.:/

&

0| Gurgaon




VLCC Health Care Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
CIN No.-U74899DL1996PLC082842

(Al amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

35.

36.

y
Capital Management (Cont'd)
Company monitors capital using gearing ratio which is calculated as underlying net debt divided by total equity plus underlying net debt. The
Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 50%. The Company measures underlying net debt as tofal liabilities, comprising interest
bearing loans and borrowings, excluding any dues to subsidiaries or group company less cash and cash equivalents. For the purpose of Capital
management, total capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
Company.

Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio at March 31,2020 is as follows:
Gearing ratio

March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Borrowings (Refer to note 11(a)} 4,563 4,810
Less: cash and cash equivalents

(Refer to note 7(d)) (369) (2,454)
Adjusted Net debt 4,193 2,356
Total Equity 4739 5,988
Total Equity 4,739 5,988
Total Equity and net debt 8,932 8,344
Capital and adjusted net debt 8,932 . 8,344
Gearing ratio (Net Debt/ Total Equity) 47% 28%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2020, March 31, 2019,

Events after reporting period

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020, The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However,.the date on which the Code will come
into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code
when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

(This page has been intentionally left blank)
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37. Fair values

The management has assessed the fair value of all the financial assets and liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, trade receivable, security
deposits, other financial assets, investments, trade payables and other financial liabilities, approximate their carrying amounts which is at amortised
cost.

The carrying amounts of other items carried at amortised cost are reasonable approximation of their fair values.

Accordingly, the Company does not have any financial instruments to be classified under three levels of fair value measurement hierarchy in
accordance with Ind AS 113.

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

— FYILL FYIOL Amc':)?:lzed FVTPL.  FVTOCI Amortized cost
LIABILITIES '
Non- current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
- Borrowings - - 2,256 - - 2,791
- Lease Liabilities - - 12,592 - - -
Current liabilitics
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings - - 1,746 - - 808
- Lease Liabilities - - 4,858 - - -

Long term borrowings includes INR term loan from the bank which are contracted at floating rates of interest, reset at short intervals. Accordingly, the

carrying value of such long term borrowings approximate their fair value

As perour report of even date
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